GFO-15-503
Light Heavy-Duty to Medium Heavy-Duty Natural Gas Engine Integration and Demonstration Research

Questions and Answers

Q1:  Is CEC looking at three vehicles within a fleet that are of the same chassis design and function (i.e. all parcel delivery vehicles) as a qualifying project? If this qualifies, would integration of the engine into three identical chassis vehicles but that are in different fleets and see differing environs and duty cycles be a qualifying project? Would this type of project be preferred over three vehicles within the same fleet as described above?

A: Demonstrating the minimum of three vehicles with the same chassis design would qualify under this project, and the three vehicles could either be within the same fleet or in multiple fleets with similar duty cycles. The overall merit of each project will be evaluated in the scoring process. 

Q2: Would preference be given to a project that seeks to integrate the engine into 3 distinct vehicle types (i.e. a refuse truck, a flatbed and a Parcel delivery truck), or would CEC prefer to see each distinct vehicle type done in sets of three as separate proposals? 

A: There is no preference for projects that integrate into three distinct vehicle types. There is a requirement for on-road testing and demonstration of at least three vehicles in California. Both approaches mentioned above and overall project merit will be considered under this GFO. 

Q3: Does an applicant need to already have California Air Resource Board (CARB) certification to be considered for funding under this GFO?

A: No, the applicant does not need to have CARB certification to qualify under this GFO, however this could be considered in the scoring process. The purpose of this solicitation is to integrate and demonstrate a qualified natural gas engine as defined in the GFO, and projects should show convincing evidence of anticipated certification to the 2010 standards for new engines and anticipated future regulation to 0.02 NOx standard. The applicant should describe in their project proposal the current certification status and timeline, and as indicated in the application manual, provide an emission certification and commercialization plan for the project.

Q4: Will the fact that the engine we will utilize for these projects is NOT a Cummins, but is from a different Major Diesel OEM (with NAR technology) be given preference over applications that merely propose use of the Cummins product in additional fleets? In other words is the CEC looking to encourage multiple engine manufacturers over multiple applications of a single manufacturer's product?

[bookmark: _GoBack]A: The solicitation is not limited to a specific engine manufacturer and various HD vehicle OEMs will be considered. Preference will not be given to any specific OEM, and proposals will be scored individually based on the proposal’s ability to meet the objectives of the GFO, as well as the technical and overall merit of the proposal according to the scoring criteria specified in the GFO. 

Q5: For Port applications, will both on-road and off-road vehicles be considered? For example, will cargo handling equipment be eligible under this project?

A: As long as on-road emission standards are met, off-road vehicles, or multi-purpose vehicles will be considered. If the vehicle is on-road or off-road, the primary objective of the project should be to meet on-road CARB emission standards. The applicant should describe in their proposal how they plan to meet current and future on-road emission standards in the commercialization and emission certification plan.

Q6: When looking at an emission profile of a vehicle, will the use of a hybrid system or renewable natural gas be considered? Will it be considered in scoring and how will that be evaluated?

A: Yes, the emission profile for all technologies and alternative fuels will be considered in the scoring criteria. The emission benefits will be evaluated based on technical merit and based on existing resources available to determine the emission profile of a fuel. However, a hybrid system would not relieve the proponent from certifying the emissions from the engine. While the Energy Commission values the benefits of renewable natural gas as a low carbon fuel option, it is not considered a key element of this solicitation or the scoring process.  The purpose of this solicitation is to demonstrate the commercial readiness of natural gas engines integrated into light heavy-duty to medium heavy-duty vehicles.  The applicant must present the emission and overall benefits when submitting their application, as this will be considered in scoring.


Q7: The GFO States that match funding is not required, however it is included in the scoring criteria. If match funding is not required, why is it considered under the scoring criteria for 10 points?

A: While match funding is not required, it is encouraged and considered under the scoring criteria for competitive purposes as it will contribute to a higher overall score.


Q8: When doing impact benefits, do you have to consider the carbon footprint of the fuel itself, or should the benefits focus solely on the emissions impacts from the engine or vehicle? 

A: The applicant should determine the overall well-to-wheel carbon footprint of the proposed vehicle(s), including fuel. CARB provides resources, such as the CA-GREET Model, that assess vehicle applications on a well-to-wheel basis. However, because information may be limited for certain applications and technologies, it is up to applicant to present the benefits as calculated for their projects. The project benefits will be considered under technical merit and how the applicant presents the benefits to California. This will be evaluated and scored accordingly. 

Q9: To determine the ability to meet 0.02 NOx, must an applicant disclose proprietary confidential info to CEC?
A: No, the applicant should not disclose any proprietary information in the proposal. As described in the Application Manual, any proposals that contain confidential information will be disqualified. The applicant must determine how to best describe their ability to meet the 0.02 g/bhp-hr NOx requirement when describing their approach in the emission certification and commercialization plan.
Q10: CARB is still in the process on how to determine vehicle NOx for hybrid vehicles. Because of that, I assume the engine tailpipe emission from the FTP test is the standard CEC will use and not a chassis dynamometer number from a non-standardized test?
A: See answer to Q6. A hybrid system would not relieve the proponent from certifying emissions from the engine.  The CEC understands that there is not a standard test procedure for evaluating heavy-duty hybrid vehicle emissions, so the applicant must present their method for evaluating emission benefits.
Q11: Are Vocational truck body manufacturers considered OEMs for this solicitation or must it be the Chassis manufacturer to qualify as OEM?
A: Vocational truck body manufacturers and chassis manufacturers could both be considered OEMs depending on the business model or partnership to assemble and integrate the qualified vehicle. The solicitation requirements are listed on Page 11 of the Application Manual and states that Chassis integration must involve the engine OEM, vehicle OEM, or third party designated by OEM. This requirement can be presented as a part of the emissions certification and commercialization plan, and will be evaluated in the scoring process accordingly.
Q12: In the webinar, it was stated that the Warranty provider of the vehicle will be considered the OEM. Many vocational truck vehicle manufacturers WARRANTY THEIR BODY (Refuse, crane trucks, Armored vehicles etc) but do not warranty the engine, drive train or suspension. Would this still qualify? Some chassis are delivered as barebone running diesel vehicles to the body manufacturers. To do a coordinated and viable commercial upfit to Low NOx CNG operation of any of these vocational bodied vehicles would mean involving the body manufacturer, not the chassis manufacturer, as the body manufacturer would be the path to market and the company that would adopt the technology. The Chassis OEM, if currently offering a CNG option in this class vehicle, that has a direct diesel equivalent, can ONLY be using a Cummins engine- not an engine made by the chassis manufacturer. This option is offered ONLY at the request of the body manufacturer, who would be responsible for upfitting of the fuel storage to fit the vocational application- the chassis manufacturer would not be doing this activity or take on this liability.
 
If the goal is to get Low NOx CNG into vocational applications traditionally serviced by Diesel, I strongly suggest you allow manufacturers that currently have retail availability of diesel class 3-6 vocational trucks be allowed to qualify as the OEM for this solicitation. Otherwise you are limiting this solicitation to Cummins being the only party able to qualify due to their existing relationships with Navistar and Freightliner. Cummins has already announced their intended release of a Low NOx engine in the Freightliner Medium Heavy Duty Chassis as used in Box Trucks, School buses, flatbeds etc. This funding would only decrease their costs of introducing a product they are already lining up for production, and would do nothing towards further promoting use of Low NOx CNG in vocational vehicles not already slated for production.

A: Vocational truck body manufacturers and chassis manufacturers could both be considered OEMs depending on the business model or partnership to assemble and integrate the qualified vehicle. The solicitation requirements are listed on Page 11 of the Application Manual and states that Chassis integration must involve the engine OEM, vehicle OEM, or third party designated by OEM. The objective of the solicitation is to support the commercialization of compliant low-NOx natural gas engines in a range of vehicle applications commonly used in California fleets. This will be evaluated under the technical criteria and emission certification and commercialization plan provided in the proposal and proposals will be scored on the overall merit of the project.
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